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DARRELL FAIRBURN 

SuPERlNTUNDI!NT 

MATTHEW TATE 
PRtsiDf..VT 

WASHINGTON PARISH SCHOOL SYSTEM 
P.O. BOX587 

December 18, 2018 

To the Members and Citizens of the 
Washington Parish School Board 
Franklinton, Louisiana: 

FRANKLINTON, LOUISIANA 70438 
(985) 839-3436 FAX # (985) 839-5464 

The comprehensive annual financial report of the Washington Parish School Board for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2018, is hereby submitted. State law requires that all general-purpose local governments publish 
within six months of the close of each fiscal year a complete set of financial statements presented in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Responsibility for 
both the accuracy of the data, and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, 
rests with the School Board. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data is accurate in all 
material respects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of 
operations of the School Board. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of 
the School Board's financial activities have been included. More specific and detailed information pertaining 
to the School Board's economic and financial status can be found in the management's discussion and 
analysis section of these reports. The management's discussion and analysis section immediately follows the 
independent auditors' report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic 
financial statements. The management's discussion and analysis section complements this letter of 
transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it. 

The School Board is required to undergo an ammal single audit in confonnity with the provisions of the 
Single Audit Act, as amended, and U.S. Office of Management and Budget Uniform Guidance, Audits of 
States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations. Information related to this single audit, including 
the schedule of expenditures of fede.ral awards, findings and questioned costs, and the Independent Auditors ' 
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and other Matters Based on an Audit 
of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards and the Independent 
Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal Control over Compliance Required 
by Unifonn Guidance and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, are included in the single audit 
section of this report. 

This report includes all funds and activities for which the School Board exercises financial accountability. 
The School Board is a legislative body authorized to govern the public education system of Washington 
Parish, Louisiana. A nine-member board governs the School System with each member serving a concurrent 
four-year term. The current board is in the third year of its four-year term. 

The School Board's responsibility is to make public education available to the residents of Washington 
Parish , including instructional personnel, instructional facilities , administrative support, business services, 
operation and maintenance and bus transportation. The School Board provides a full range of public 
education services appropriate to grade levels ranging from pre-kindergarten th.rough grade 12. These 
include regular and enriched academic education, special education for handicapped children and vocational 
education. The system has enrollment at October 1, 2018 of 5,287 which includes 310 pre-kindergarten 
students. 
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The School Board is authorized to establish public schools as it deems necessary, to provide adequate school 
facilities for the children of the parish, to determine the number of teachers to be employed and to determine 
the local supplement to their salaries. Accordingly, since the School Board members are elected by the public 
and have decision-making authority, the power to designate management, the ability to significantly influence 
operations and primary accountability for financial matters, the School Board is not included in any other 
goverrnnental reporting entity. 

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK 

Washington Parish, located in rural southeastern Louisiana, covers an area of 676 square miles. The Parish is 
bordered on the east and north by the Mississippi state line. Its western boundary is Tangipahoa Parish and 
St. Tammany Parish is to the south. Washington Parish is recognized for the Washington Parish Free Fair, 
the largest free fair in the world. It is also recognized for its watermelons, dairy cattle, and timber industry, as 
well as its great hospitality. The population is approximately 46,419 people in approximately 18,133 
households. 

The economy of Washington Parish is primarily agricultural, with the paper industry and gas pipeline stations 
providing additional jobs. According to the 2010 census, the median value of owner-occupied housing units 
is $81,400 compared to the state value of $121,300. At the same time, the horne ownership rate in 
Washington Parish is 74.5%, above the state rate of 68.2%. 

Projected enrollment over the next few years is anticipated to increase at a slow rate. The School Board 
continues to assess the anticipated enrollment as well as the increased needs for the changes in technology and 
other considerations as the buildings of the School Board continue to age. Currently, the buildings range from 
12 to 116 years old. The two newest buildings are the Pine Jr. and Sr. High School and Franklinton 
Elementary School, which were built in 2006. Repairs and maintenance as well as upkeep activities are 
ongoing to maintain the current level ofthe buildings. 

MAJOR INITIATIVES 

During fiscal year 2018, the School Board replaced 21 windows at Enon Elementary School. A metal roof 
was installed at Franklinton Primary School. The fence around the football field at Franklinton High 
School was replaced. Also, a weight room for the football team was constructed for Pine High School. 
Approximately $90,630 was spent on these repairs and additions for the 2018 fiscal year. 

Our education successes can be attributed to our dedicated teachers and staff. The School Board is in the 
sixteenth year of a universal 4-year old program. The School Board also continues the reading initiative that 
began with the Reading First Program fourteen years ago. 

VI 



FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

Internal Controls. Management of the School Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
controls designed to ensure that the assets of the School Board are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to 
ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Internal controls 
are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of 
reasonable assurance recognizes that (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be 
derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. 

Single Audit. As a recipient of federal, state and local financial assistance, the School Board also is 
responsible for ensuring that adequate internal controls are in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws 
and regulations related to those programs. This internal control structure is subject to periodic evaluation by 
n1anage1nent. 

As a part of the School Board's single audit, tests are made to determine the extent of compliance testing 
related to federal programs, as well as to determine that the School Board has complied with applicable laws 
and regulations. The results of the School Board's single audit for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 
provided no instances of material weaknesses in internal controls or significant violations of applicable laws 
and regulations. 

Budgeting Controls. In addition, the School Board maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these 
budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with the annual appropriated budgets, including all subsequent 
amendments, approved by the School Board. Activities of the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds are 
included in the annual appropriated budget. The level of budgetary control (that is, the level at which 
expenditures cannot exceed the appropriated amount) is established at the function or project level within the 
individual funds. The School Board also maintains an encumbrance accounting system as one technique of 
accomplishing budgetary control throughout the year. 

As demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report, the School 
Board continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management. 

Debt Administration. At June 30, 2018, the School Board had a number of debt issues outstanding totaling 
$6,440,000. The School Board is limited by state statute from issuing property tax bonds in excess of 50% of 
the assessed valuation of the taxable property including Homestead Exempt Property and Nonexempt 
property. 

Long Term Financial Planning. Significant construction projects for the School Board were completed in 
fiscal year 2014. The School Board has plans to build a new Franklinton Junior High School and make 
significant building improvements to some of the other schools if funding can be obtained through the 
issuance of general obligation bonds. The School Board continues to seek funding to provide adequate 
resources for the education of its community. In addition, the School Board annually reviews its budget and 
operational matters and will continue to assess its long-term financial planning on an annual basis. 
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Financial Policies. The School Board adopted a Loans to Schools policy in June of 2012. Before this policy 
was in place, an individual school could borrow against the operation allocation and use the funds for capital 
projects, paying the funds back over a period of time from future operation allocations. This often left 
administration at the school without sufficient funds to cover the operation expenses of the school. The 
purpose of the policy was to ensure that each school had adequate funds to cover normal day-to-day operating 
requirements, such as custodial supplies and equipment. After the policy was adopted, schools can only ask 
for advances on their operational allocation for amounts less than $10,000 and can only use those loans for 
small equipment such as mowers, weight equipment or musical instruments. A school may not have more 
than $10,000 in loans in aggregate at any one time. The total 2017-2018 allocation to schools for operations 
was $605,145 and no loans were requested against these funds. 

OTHER INFORMATION 

Independent Audit. State statutes require an annual audit by an independent certified public accountant. 
The accounting and auditing firm of Postlethwaite and Netterville, APAC performed the fiscal year 2018 
audit. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit was also designed to meet 
the requirements of the federal Single Audit Act, as amended and related to Uniform Guidance. The 
independent auditors' report on the financial statements is included in the financial section of this report. The 
independent auditors' reports related specifically to the Single Audit Act are included in the Single Audit 
Section. 

Awards. The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the School Board for its comprehensive 
annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. The School Board first applied for the 
Certificate of Achievement (GFOA) in 2004. 

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable and 
efficiently organized comprehensive financial report, whose contents conform to program standards. Such 
reports must satisfY both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. 

The School Board is participating in the Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting program sponsored 
by the Association of School Business Officials, International (ASBO) for the fourteenth time. The certificate 
was awarded to the School Board for the first time for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2005. The award certifies that the school system has presented its comprehensive annual 
financial report to the ASBO Panel of Review for critical review and evaluation and that the report was 
judged to have complied with the principles and practices of financial reporting recognized by ASBO. 
Receiving the award is recognition that the school system has met the highest standards of excellence in 
school financial reporting. 

Both a Certificate of Achievement (GFOA) and a Certificate of Excellence (ASBO) are valid for a period of 
one year only. We believe our current comprehensive annual financial report continues to conform to the 
program requirements of both organizations and we are submitting it to GFOA and ASBO to determine its 
eligibility for each ofthe certificates. 
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Acknowledgments. The preparation of the comprehensive annual financial report on a timely basis was 
made possible by the dedicated service of the entire staff of the Accounting Department. Each member of the 
department has our sincere appreciation for the contributions made in the preparation of this report. 

In closing, without the leadership and support of the Members of the School Board, both individually and 
collectively, preparation of this report would not have been possible. 

Respectfully submitted, 
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Postlethwaite & Netterville 

The Members of the 
Washington Parish School Board 

Franklinton, Louisiana: 

30th Floor, Energy Centre, 1100 Poydras Street - New Orleans, LA 70163 
One Galleria Blvd., Suite 2100 - Metairie, LA 70001 

504-837-5990 Phone - 504-834-3609 Fax - p 1 o.~ :or 

A Professional Accounting Corporation 

Independent Auditors' Report 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Washington Parish School Board (the School 
Board), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the School Board's basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements. 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor·s' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors ' judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's 
internal controL Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 



Postlethwaite & Netterville 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the fmancial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining 
fund information of the School Board as of June 30, 2018, and the respective changes in financial 
position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Emphasis of Matter 

Change in Accounting Principle 

As described in Note 1 v and 12 to the financial statements, the School Board adopted Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement Number 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions for the year ended June 30, 2018. This new standard 
requires the School Board to recognize and report its total other post-employment benefit liability, 
measured according to actuarial methods and approaches prescribed within the standard along with 
certain disclosures. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management' s 
discussion on pages 4 through 10, analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 55 through 
57, the schedule of proportionate share of the net pension liability on page 58, the schedule of 
contributions on page 59 and the schedule of changes in total OPEB liability and related ratios on page 60 
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the 
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers 
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures 
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Prior-Year Comparative Information 

We have previously audited the School Board's 2017 fmancial statements, and we expressed unmodified 
opinions on the respective financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund infonnation in our report dated June 30, 2017. In our opinion, the summarized 
comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, is consistent, in all 
material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived. 
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Other Supplementwy Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the School Board's basic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary information 
consisting of the introductory section, combining and individual non-major fund financial statements and 
budgetary comparison schedules, agency fund statement of changes in assets and liabilities, and in 
deposits-by school, schedule of compensation paid to board members, schedule of compensation, 
benefits, and other payments to agency head, and the statistical tables presented on pages v through xiii, 
pages 61 through 82, pages 83 through 84, page 85 , page 86 and pages 87 through 111, respectively, are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and nonmajor fund budgetary 
comparison schedules, Statements of Changes in Assets and Liabilities and Deposits by School, the 
Schedule of Compensation Paid to Board Members, and the Schedule of Compensation, Benefits, and 
Other Payments to Agency Head, are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. Such 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements 
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all 
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on them. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 18 
2018, on our consideration of the School Board's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests 
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal 
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School Board 's internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance. 

Metairie, Louisiana 
December 18, 2018 
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WASHINGTON PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Franklinton, Louisiana 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

The Management's Discussion and Analysis of the Washington Parish School Board's (the School Board) 
financial performance presents a narrative overview and analysis of the School Board's financial activities as of 
June 30, 2018. This document focuses on the current year's activities, resulting changes, and currently known 
facts in comparison with the prior year's information (where available). 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

* The School Board's liabilities and deferred inflows of resources exceeded assets and deferred outflows 
of resources at the close of fiscal year 2018 by approximately $82.0 million. * The School Board's revenues exceeded expenses by $5,184,089 for the year ended June 30, 2018. * The School Board's general fund expended approximately $45.1 million, recognizing an increase in 
fund balance of approximately $1.2 million for the fiscal year ended 2018. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

These financial statements consist of three sections- Management's Discussion and Analysis (this section), the 
basic financial statements (including the notes to the financial statements), and required supplementary 
information. 

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide 
readers with a broad overview of the School Board's finances, in a manner similar to private sector business. 

The statement of net position presents information on all of the School Board's assets and deferred outflows, and 
liabilities and deferred inflows, with the difference between these reported as net position. Over time, increases 
or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the School Board 
is improving or deteriorating. 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the School Board's net position changed during 
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to 
the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the cash flows (e.g., recognition of taxes receivables/uncollected 
and changes in unused compensated absences). 

Both of the government-wide financial statements present functions of the School Board that are principally 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities). The School Board has no 
functions or activities which are business-like in nature. Business-like means that they are primarily supported 
by user fees and charges for services, such as a municipally owned utility system. The governmental activities of 
the School Board include regular and special education programs, support services, administration, maintenance, 
student transportation, and school food services. The School Board contains no other units of government 
(component units) nor is it contained as a component unit of any other level oflocal or state government. 

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that are used to maintain control over the 
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The School Board, like other state and 
local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance related legal 
requirements. The funds of the School Board can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, internal 
service funds, and fiduciary funds. 

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. 
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WASHINGTON PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Franklinton, Louisiana 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

However, unlike the goverrnnent-wide financial statements, goverrnnental fund financial statements 
focus on near term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable 
resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a 
goverrnnent's near term financial requirements. Because the focus of goverrnnental funds is narrower 
than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented 
for governmental funds with similar information presented for goverrnnental activities in the 
goverrnnent-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long term impact 
of the School Board's near-term financing decisions. Both the goverrnnental fund balance and the 
goverrnnental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance provide a 
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between goverrnnental funds and goverrnnental activities. 
The School Board maintains dozens of individual governmental funds. Information is presented 
separately in the goverrnnent fund balance sheet and in the goverrnnental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, School Lunch, and Tax District #4 
Debt Service. 

The remaining funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation under the label of other 
goverrnnental funds, which contains all non-major funds. Individual fund data for each of these non­
major funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. 

The School Board adopts annual appropriated budgets for the General Fund and Special Revenue 
Funds. 

Internal Service Funds. Internal service funds are used to account for charges of fees to departments 
to help cover the costs of certain services it provides by being self-insured. The School Board's 
workers' compensation program is accounted for in its Internal Service Fund. 

Fiduciary Fund. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of outside 
parties such as students. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements 
because of the resources of those funds are not available to support the School Board's programs. The 
sole fiduciary fund of the School board is the School Activity Fund, which contains monies belonging to 
the schools, their students, and clubs and other activities. 

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the goverrnnent-wide and fund financial statements. 

GOVERNMENT -WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities are designed to provide readers with a broad 
overview of the School Board's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. The statement of net 
position presents financial information on all of the School Board's assets, deferred outflows of resources, 
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. All of the year's 
revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. 

These two statements report the School Board's net position and changes in net position. Increases or decreases 
in the School Board's net position are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. 
The net position of the School Board increased by $5,184,089, or 5.94%, in 2018 as compared to an increase of 
$462,456, or 1.02%, in 2017. 
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WASHINGTON PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Franklinton, Louisiana 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

• Minimum Foundation Program Revenue Increased by $1,139,128 based on an increase in weighted 
student counts, increased Supplemental Course Allocation and Career Development Fund money 
allocated to the district in Level 4, and a formula audit adjustment of approximately $640,000. 

• State Funding outside ofthe MFP formula decreased by $306,479. 

MAJOR FUND FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

The School Board's financial statements include three major funds. These funds are the General Fund, School 
Lunch Fund, and Tax District #4 Debt Service. 

The General Fund's fund balance increased 10.5% during the year ended June 30, 2018, by $1,200,988 to 
$12,620,273 as a result increased revenue. Revenues increased by approximately $1.13 million primarily due to 
increased Minimum Foundation Program Revenue received. This was as a result of an increase in weighted 
student counts, increased Supplemental Course Allocation and Career Development Fund money allocated to 
the district in Level 4, and a formula audit adjustment of approximately $640,000. Expenditures increased by 
approximately $1.4 million primarily due to a $950 in one time supplements given to all full-time employees 
and the purchase of five new district-owned school buses. Variances between budgeted and actual amounts 
include a 2.66% variance of total revenues over budgeted revenues and a (1.06%) variance of total expenditures 
over budgeted expenditures. 

The School Lunch Special Revenue Fund's fund balance decreased by $3,202 in fiscal year 2018 from $204,870 
in fiscal year 2017. Expenditures were approximately $3.9 million. The change in fund balance for the School 
Lunch Special Revenue Fund for fiscal year 2018 is $3,202. The School Lunch Fund had increased federal 
funding in fiscal year 2018 as a result of the district's continued participation in the Community Eligibility 
Provision Program. 

The Tax District #4 Debt Service Fund accounts for the debt service for the proceeds of the 2012 bond issue. 
During fiscal year 2018, expenditures for the fund approximated $1.4 million, exceeding revenues for debt 
service which approximated $1.18 million for the year, resulting in an approximate $252,000 decrease in fund 
balance. Ad valorem tax revenue decreased by $52,198 to $1,152,440 in 2018 due to lowering the millage rate 
in an attempt to deplete the fund balance during the last few years left on the bond issue. Debt service 
expenditures decreased by $4,508 in fiscal year 2018 compared to fiscal year 2017 to $1,391,832. 

Restrictions, commitments, or other limitations of fund balance do not significantly affect the availability of 
fund resources for future use. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS 

Growth of the parish is expected to be consistent with prior year. The Washington Parish School Board's 
elected and appointed officials considered the following factors and indicators when setting next year's budget. 

These factors and indicators include: 

• Property tax millages for the Mt. Hermon District will no longer be assessed due to the payoff of the 
corresponding bond issue. This is expected to decrease ad valorem (property) taxes. 

• Property tax millages for the Tax District #4 will drop from 15 to 14 mills in 2018, which is expected to 
decrease ad valorem (property) taxes. 

• Property tax mill ages for the V amado District will no longer be assessed due to the payoff of the 
corresponding bond issue. This is expected to decrease ad valorem (property) taxes. 

• Growth of the parish is expected to be consistent with prior year's growth, which is expected to increase 
sales taxes. 

• A decrease in MFP funding of approximately $1.8 Million is expected due to a decrease in student 
population and a negative formula audit adjustment of approximately $660,000. 

• Expenditures are expected to increase over the prior years, particularly in the following areas: 
+ Teachers' retirement contribution rates will increase from 26.6% to 26.7%. 
+ School employees' retirement contribution rates will increase from 27.6% to 28.0%. 
+ Major Building Repairs are expected to cost approximately $1,000,000. 

At the time these financial statements were prepared and audited, the School Board was aware of the following 
circumstances that could significantly affect the School Board's financial health in the future: 

• Sales taxes are expected to increase slightly in fiscal year 2018-2019 based on trends over the past three 
years and prior year collections. 

• The student count for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019 has decreased, which is 5,287 compared to 
5,311 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018. 
State formula funding was level for several years. The state gave a permanent increase of 2.75% in 
2014-2015, but additional increases are not guaranteed nor expected for 2018-2019. 

All of these factors were considered in preparing the Washington Parish School Board's budget for the 2018-
2019 fiscal year. 

CONTACTING THE WASHINGTON PARISH SCHOOL BOARD'S MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the School Board's finances for those with an 
interest in the government's financial position and operations. Questions concerning any of the information 
provided in this report or request for additional financial information should be addressed to Lacy Burris, 
Washington Parish School Board, (985) 839-3436. 
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WASHINGTON PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
FRANKLINTON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The Washington Parish School Board (the School Board) was created by Louisiana Revised Statute 
(LSA-R.S.) 17:51 to provide public education for the children within Washington Parish. The School 
Board is authorized by LSA-R.S 17:81 to establish policies and regulations for its own government 
consistent with the laws of the State of Louisiana and the regulations of the Louisiana Board of 
Elementary and Secondary Education. The School Board is comprised of nine members who are 
elected from nine districts for concurrent terms of four years. 

The School Board operates 10 schools within the parish with a total enrollment of 5,287 pupils as of 
October I, 2018. In conjunction with the regular educational programs, some of these schools offer 
special education and/or adult education programs. In addition, the School Board provides 
transportation and school food services for the students. 

(a) Reporting Entity 

The financial reporting entity consists of (a) the primary government, (b) organizations for which 
the primary government is financially accountable, and (c) organizations for which nature and 
significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would 
cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board establishes criteria for determining which component 
units should be considered part of the School Board for financial reporting purposes. The basic 
criterion for including a potential component unit within the reporting entity is financial 
dependency in addition to a financial benefit or burden relationship. These criteria include: 

(I) Appointing a voting majority of an organization's governing body, and 

(a) The ability of the School Board to impose its will on that organization and/or 

(b) The potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to or impose 
specific financial burdens on the School Board. 

(2) Organizations for which the School Board does not appoint a voting majority but which are 
fiscally dependent on the School Board and provide specific financial benefits or impose 
specific financial burdens on the School Board. 

(3) Organizations for which the reporting entity's financial statements would be misleading if 
data of the organization were not included because of the nature or significance of the 
relationship. 

( 4) Organizations in which it has a majority equity interest for the purpose of directly 
facilitating government services. 
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 

The scope of public service is one such factor that includes the following aspects: 

(I) Whether the activity is for the benefit of the reporting entity and/or its residents. 

(2) Whether the activity is conducted within the geographic boundaries of the reporting entity 
and is generally available to the citizens of that entity. 

Several agencies, although meeting the criterion for scope of public service, are not included in 
the financial statements of the School Board because there is no financial interdependency with 
the School Board. These agencies, such as the parish police jury, independently elected parish 
officials and municipalities within the parish, are separate taxing entities established by Louisiana 
law. 

Similarly, the School Board is not included in any other reporting entity since School Board 
members are elected by the public and have decision-making authority, the power to designate 
management, the ability to significantly influence operations, and primary accountability for 
fiscal matters. 

The accounting policies of the Washington Parish School Board conform to accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to goverrnnental units. The 
following is a summary of the more significant policies. 

(b) Basis of Presentation- Fund Accounting 

The accounts of the School Board are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is 
considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a 
separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, deferred outflows and inflows of 
resources, liabilities, fund equities, revenues, and expenditures. Resources are allocated to and 
accounted for in the individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and 
the means by which spending activities are controlled. The various funds are summarized by type 
in the financial statements. The following fund types are used by the School Board: 

Governmental Fund Types 

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions of the School Board 
are financed. The acquisition, use, and balances of the School Board's expendable financial 
resources and the related liabilities are accounted for through governmental funds. Governmental 
funds are accounted for on a spending measurement focus, which means that the measurement 
focus is based upon determination of changes in financial position, rather than upon net income 
determination. The following are the School Board's governmental fund types: 

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the School Board. The 
General Fund receives most of the resources derived by the School Board from local 
sources (principally ad valorem and sales taxes) and state sources (principally the State 
Minimum Foundation Program funding). General fund expenditures represent the cost of 
general school system operations and individual functional categories of instructional and 
support services. It is used to account for all financial resources except those required to be 
accounted for in another fund. 
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June 30, 2018 

Special Revenue Funds - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of 
specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. 

Debt Service Funds - Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of 
resources for, and payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs. 

Capital Project Funds - Capital Projects Funds are used for the receipt and disbursement of 
proceeds of bond issues and other special or designated revenues, such as insurance, used 
for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities, renovations, and major repairs. 

Proprietary Fund Type 

The Proprietary Fund is used to account for the School Board's ongoing organizations and 
activities which are similar to those often found in the private sector. The Proprietary Fund is 
accounted for on an economic resources measurement focus, meaning that the measurement focus 
is based upon determination of net income. Operating revenues and expenses generally result 
from providing services and delivering goods in connection with the propriety fund's primary 
ongoing operations. The School Board's proprietary fund type is limited to one internal service 
fund for the workers' compensation insurance program. Premium revenues and related costs of 
providing the program are operating activities. All other items are considered non-operating. 

Fiduciary Fund Type 

The Fiduciary Fund is used to account for assets held by the School Board in a trustee or agency 
capacity. The School Board's only agency fund is the School Activity Agency Fund, which is 
used to account for assets held by the School Board as an agent for the individual schools and 
school organizations. Agency Funds are custodial in nature and do not involve measurement of 
results of operations. 

(c) Basis of Accounting- Measurement Focus 

Government-Wide Financial Statements (GWFS) 

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities displays information about the 
reporting government as a whole. Fiduciary funds are not included in the GWFS. Fiduciary 
funds are reported only in the Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities in the fund financial 
statement level. 

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities were prepared using the economic 
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues, expenses, gains, 
losses, assets and liabilities resulting from the exchange and exchange-like transactions are 
recognized when the exchange takes place. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are 
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property 
taxes (ad valorem) are recognized as revenue in the year they are levied and grant revenues are 
recognized as soon as all eligibility requirements are met. 
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Internal Activities The workers' compensation fund provides services to the goverrnnental 
funds. Accordingly, these funds were rolled up into the goverrnnental activities. 

Program Revenues Program revenues include 1) charges for services provided, 2) operating 
grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions; program revenues reduce the 
cost of the function to be financed from the School Board's general revenues. Charges for 
services are primarily derived from food sales. Operating grants and contributions consist of the 
many educational grants received from the federal and state government. Capital grants and 
contributions consists of capital grants received from the federal and state government. 

Allocation oflndirect Expenses The School Board reports all direct expenses by function in the 
Statement of Activities. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a function. 
Depreciation expense is specifically identified by function and is included in the direct expense of 
each function. Interest on general long-term debt is considered an indirect expense and 1s 
reported separately in the Statement of Activities. Other indirect expenses are not allocated. 

Fund Financial Statements (FFS) 

Fund financial statements report detailed information about the School Board. The focus of 
governmental and enterprise fund financial statements is on major funds rather than reporting 
funds by type. Each major fund is presented in a separate column. The major funds reported are 
the General Fund, School Lunch Special Revenue Fund, and Tax District #4 Debt Service Fund. 

The General Fund is used to account for the day-to-day operations for the School Board. The 
School Lunch is used to account for the collection of the revenues for specific programmatic 
purposes. The Tax District #4 Debt Service Fund is used to account for monies for debt service 
for the capital projects in the Franklinton, Enon, Pine, and Thomas communities. 

Non-major funds are aggregated and presented in a single colunrn. The internal service fund is 
presented in the proprietary fund statements. 

Governmental Funds 

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its 
measurement focus. All governmental fund types are accounted for using a current financial 
resources measurement focus under the modified accrual basis of accounting. With this 
measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the 
balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases (i.e., revenues and other 
financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current 
assets. 

The proprietary fund type is accounted for on a flow of econmnic resources measurement focus. 
With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of this 
fund type are included on the balance sheet. 
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The fiduciary fund types (agency fund) are reported in the financial statements on the accrual 
basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis, revenues are recorded when they are earned. 
Revenues not considered earned are recorded as deferred revenues. 

The following practices in recording revenues and expenditures have been used for the 
governmental funds. 

Revenues 

Federal and state entitlements, which include state nummum foundation program and state 
revenue sharing, are recorded as unrestricted grants-in-aid when available and measurable. These 
revenues are susceptible to accrual under the modified basis of accounting. For this purpose, the 
Board considers all revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the 
current fiscal period. Federal and state grants which are restricted as to the purpose of the 
expenditures are recorded when the reimbursable expenditures have been made. 

Ad valorem taxes are recorded in the year the taxes are due and payable. Ad valorem taxes are 
assessed on a calendar year basis, based on the assessed value on January I, become due and 
delinquent on December 31. The taxes were levied by the School Board on June 14, 2018. 
However, before the taxes can be collected, the tax rolls must be submitted to the State Tax 
Commission for approval. The taxes are generally collected in December, January, and February 
of the fiscal year. Property tax revenues are accrued at fiscal year end to the extent that they have 
been collected and are unremitted by the Washington Parish Tax Collector's Office. Such 
amounts are measurable and available to finance current operations. Interest income on time 
deposits and revenues from rentals, leases, and royalties are recorded when earned. Sales and use 
tax revenues are recorded in the month in which the School Board considers them available (60 
days) to finance current year obligations and are collected by the Washington Parish Tax 
Collector. 

Substantially all other revenues are recorded when received. Revenue received in advance of 
revenue recognition is unavailable. 

Expenditures 

Salaries are recorded as expenditures when incurred. Nine-month employee salaries are incurred 
over a nine-month period but paid over a twelve-month period. Compensated absences are 
recognized as expenditures when leave is actually taken or when employees (or heirs) are paid for 
accrued leave upon retirement or death. Commitments under construction contracts are 
recognized as expenditures when earned by the contractor. Principal and interest on general long­
term obligations are not recognized until due. All other expenditures are generally recognized 
under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related fund liability is incurred. 

The proprietary fund type is reported in the financial statements on the accrual basis of 
accounting. Revenues are recognized when they are earned, and expenses are recognized when 
they are incurred. 
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Unearned Revenues 

Unearned revenues arise when resources are received before the School Board has a legal claim 
to them, such as when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying 
expenditures. 

In subsequent periods, when the School Board has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for 
unearned revenue is removed from the balance sheet and the revenue is recognized. 

(d) Budgetary Data 

The proposed budgets for fiscal year 2018 were completed and made available for public 
inspection at the School Board office on August 23, 2017. A public hearing was held on 
September 14, 2017, for suggestions and comments !rom taxpayers. The proposed fiscal year 
2018 budgets were formally adopted by the School Board on September 14, 2017. The legally 
required budgets, which included proposed expenditures and the means of financing them, for the 
General and Special Revenue Funds were made available for public inspection ten days prior to 
the public hearings. 

The budgets were prepared on a modified accrual basis, consistent with generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP). Special Revenue Funds were budgeted by program. 

F annal budgetary accounts are integrated into the accounting system during the year as a 
management control device. Appropriations which are not expensed lapse at the end of the year. 

The level of control over the budget is exercised at the function or program level for the General 
and Special Revenue Funds. The Superintendent is authorized to transfer budget amounts within 
each function; however, any supplemental appropriations that amend the total expenditures of any 
fund require School Board approval. As required by state law, when actual revenues within a 
fund are failing to meet estimated annual budgeted revenues by five percent or more, and/or 
actual expenditures within a fund are exceeding estimated budgeted expenditures by five percent 
or more, a budget amendment to reflect such changes is adopted by the School Board in an open 
meeting. Budgeted amounts included in the financial statements include the original adopted 
budget and all subsequent amendments. There were no amendments to the General Fund budget. 

(e) Encumbrances 

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other conunitments for the 
expenditure of funds are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, 
is employed in the goverm11ental funds as a management control device. However, at year end, 
all encumbrances lapse and must be budgeted in the subsequent year. 
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(/) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash includes amounts in demand deposits, interest-bearing demand deposits, and short term 
external investment pool. Cash equivalents include amounts in time deposits and short term 
external investment pool. These deposits are recorded at cost which approximates market. Under 
state law, the School Board may deposit funds in demand deposits, interest-bearing demand 
deposits, money market accounts, or time deposits with state banks organized under Louisiana 
law, national banks with their principal offices in Louisiana, or the Louisiana Asset Management 
Pool. For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the School Board considers all highly-liquid 
investments with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash 
equivalents. 

(g) Intergovernmental Receivables 

Intergovernmental receivables consist of receivables for reimbursement of expenditures under 
various state and federal programs and grants. Intergovernmental receivables amounts are 
expected to be collected within the next twelve months. 

(h) Short-Term Inter fund Receivables/Pay abies 

Short-term interfund loans are classified as interfund receivables/payables. 

(i) Inventories 

All purchased inventories are valued at cost (first-in, first-out); donated commodities are assigned 
values based on information provided by the U.S. Department of Agriculture. Inventories in the 
School Lunch Special Revenue Fund consist of food and supplies. The commodities are recorded 
as revenues when received, and expenditures when consumed on the government-wide financial 
statements, and a portion are recorded as expenditures when purchased and a portion are recorded 
as expenditures when consumed on the fund financial statements. 

0) Capital Assets 

Land, buildings and improvements, and furniture and equipment are recorded as expenditures in 
the governmental activities column in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets 
are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost, if actual historical cost is not available. 
Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value on the date of donation. Approximately 
99 percent of capital assets are valued at historical cost, while the remaining one percent are 
valued at acquisition cost, based on the historical cost oflike items. Capital assets are defined by 
the government as assets with an initial individual cost of more than $5,000. 

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially 
extend asset lives are not capitalized. Improvements are capitalized over the remaining useful 
lives ofthe assets. 
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WASHINGTON PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
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Sabbatical leave may be granted for certain medical purposes and for professional and cultural 
improvement. An employee with a teacher's certificate is entitled, subject to approval by the 
School Board, to one semester of sabbatical leave after three years of continuous service or two 
semesters of sabbatical leave after six or more years of continuous service. Sabbatical leave 
benefits are recorded as expenditures in the period paid. The cost of current leave privileges is 
recognized as current year expenditures in the governmental funds, generally the General Fund 
and Special Revenue Funds, when leave is actually taken. 

(m) Pension Plans 

The School Board participates in two pension plans administered by other governmental entities 
which cover substantially all employees who meet certain length of service requirements. 

(n) Net Position- Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The statement of net position reports net position as the difference between all other elements in a 
statement of net position and is displayed in three components-net investment in capital assets, 
restricted net position (distinguishing between major categories of restrictions), and unrestricted 
net position. 

Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, 
reduced by the outstanding balance of borrowings for capital asset acquisition, construction, or 
improvement of those assets, increased by deferred outflows of resources attributable to capital 
asset acquisition, construction or improvement, and reduced by deferred inflows of resources 
attributable to either capital asset acquisition, construction, or improvement or to capital asset 
related debt. Capital-related debt or deferred inflows equal to unspent capital asset related debt 
proceeds or deferred inflows of resources is included in calculating either restricted or 
unrestricted net position, depending upon whether the unspent amounts are restricted. 

Restricted net position reflects net position when there are limitations imposed on a net position's 
use by external parties such as creditors, grantors, laws or regulations of other governments. 
Restricted net position consists of restricted assets less liabilities related to restricted assets less 
deferred inflows related to restricted assets. Liabilities and deferred inflows related to restricted 
assets include liabilities and deferred inflows to be liquidated with restricted assets and arising 
from the same resource flow that results in restricted assets. When both restricted and unrestricted 
resources are available for use, it is the School Board's policy to use restricted resources first, 
then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

Unrestricted net position is the balance (deficit) of all other elements in a statement of net 
position remaining after net investment in capital assets and restricted net position. 

The governmental activities unrestricted net position has a negative balance at June 30, 2018. 
The School Board plans to gradually reduce this negative balance when it shows increases in 
revenues over expenses and is able to fund pension and post-employment benefits, reducing the 
total liability and increasing net position. 
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WASHINGTON PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Franklinton, Louisiana 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 

(o) Equity- Fund Financial Statements 

The following fund balance classifications describe the relative strength of the spending 
constraints placed on the purposes for which resources can be used: 

• Nonspendable fund balance - amounts that are not in a spendable form (such as 
inventory) or are required to be maintained intact; 

• Restricted fund balance - amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers 
(such as grantor, bondholders, and higher levels of government), through constitutional 
provisions, or by enabling legislation; 

• Committed fund balance - amounts constrained to specific purposes by a government 
itself, using its highest level of decision-making authority by a vote of the School Board; 
to be reported as committed, amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the 
government takes the same highest level action to remove or change the constraint; 

• Assigned fund balance - amounts a government intends to use for a specific purpose; 
intent can be expressed by the governing body or by an official or body to which the 
governmental body delegates the authority such as the School Board and its management. 
The policy utilized by the School Board is that the School Board authorizes management 
to assign funds as needed for applicable items and this policy is established by the 
governing body pursuant to the Superintendent's authorization; 

• Unassigned fund balance - amounts that are available for any purpose; positive amounts 
are reported only in the general fund. 

The School Board establishes (and modifies or rescinds) fund balance commitments by passage 
of a resolution. Assigned fund balance is established by the School Board through adoption of 
amendment of the budget as intended for specific purposes (such as the purchase of fixed assets, 
construction, debt service, or for other purposes). 

When an expenditure is incurred for the purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund 
balance is available, the School Board considers restricted funds to have been spent first. When 
an expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are 
available, the School Board considers amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, 
then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds, as needed, unless the School Board has 
provided otherwise in its commitment or assignment actions. 

(p) Interfund Transactions 

There are several types of transactions that are reported in the financial statements as interfund 
items. Interfund transactions which constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures or 
expenses initially made from that fund which are properly applicable to another fund are recorded 
as expenditures or expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of the expenditure or 
expense in the fund that is being reimbursed. 

Nonrecurring or nonroutine transfers of equity between funds are reported as additions to or 
deductions from fund balance. All other transfers are treated as operating transfers and are 
included in the results of operations of both governmental and proprietary funds. 
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 

(q) Sales Taxes 

On October 4, 1966, the voters of Washington Parish approved a one percent parish wide sales 
and use tax to be levied for the Washington Parish School Board and the City of Bogalusa School 
Board. The proceeds of the tax are allocated on the basis of 45 percent to the Washington Parish 
School Board and 55 percent to the City of Bogalusa School Board. The proceeds, after payment 
of necessary costs and expenses of collecting the tax, are dedicated for payment of salaries of 
teachers, other school personnel and other operating expenditures. 

On April 4, 1981, the voters of Washington Parish approved a one percent sales and use tax to be 
levied only for the use of the Washington Parish School Board. The proceeds, after payment of 
necessary costs and expenses of collecting the tax, are dedicated to the general operation and 
maintenance of the schools in the parish, including the payment of salaries and fringe benefits of 
all school board employees, acquisition of land and buildings, purchase of other capital 
improvements to the schools in the parish and funding of bonds for the purpose of making capital 
improvements as mentioned previously. 

Sales and use taxes are collected and remitted to the School Board by the Washington Parish 
Sheriff's Office. The sales and use taxes collected in June on behalf of the Washington Parish 
School Board are remitted to the School Board by July 30. 

(r) Claims and Judgments 

The School Board accounts for its workers' compensation self-insurance program in its internal 
service fund. The liabilities for claims and judgments are reported when it is probable that a loss 
has occurred and the amount of that loss can be reasonably estimated. 

Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred but not reported as well as 
incremental claim adjustment expenses. Because actual claims liabilities depend on such 
complex factors as inflation, changes in legal doctrines and damage awards, the process used in 
computing claims liability does not necessarily result in an exact amount. Claims liabilities are 
reevaluated periodically to take into consideration recently settled claims, the frequency of claims 
and other economic and social factors. 

(s) Prepaid Expenses 

Prepaid expenses include amounts paid in advance for goods and services. Prepaid expenses are 
shown as either current or other assets on the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position, 
depending on when management expects to realize their benefits. Prepaid expenditures are 
recorded in the year that the expenditure is accrued using the consumption method. 
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(t) Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

(u) Pension Plans 

 (v) Current Year Adoption of New Accounting Standard and Restatement of Net Position 

Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other 
Than Pensions. 



  (v) Management’s Use of Estimates 

(w) Comparative Data and Total Columns on Statements 



Deposits 

WASHINGTON PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
Franklinton, Louisiana 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of financial institution failure, the School 
Board's deposits may not be returned to them. To mitigate this risk, state law requires deposits to be 
secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent financial 
institution. The School Board had no custodial credit risk as of June 30,2018. 

Securities that may be pledged as collateral consist of obligations of the U.S. Government and its 
agencies, obligations of the State of Louisiana and its municipalities and school districts. 

Investn1ents 

State statutes authorize the Board to invest in Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP). 

The $130,141 in external investment pool is invested in LAMP. LAMP is administered by LAMP, Inc., 
a non-profit corporation organized under the laws of the State of Louisiana. Only local government 
entities having contracted to participate in LAMP have an investment interest in its pool of assets. The 
primary objective of LAMP is to provide a safe environment for the placement of public funds in short 
term, high quality investments. The LAMP portfolio includes only securities and other obligations in 
which local governments in Louisiana are authorized to invest in accordance with LA-R.S. 33.2955. 

LAMP is a governmental investment pool that reports at fair value. The following facts are relevant for 
investment pools: 

Credit risk: LAMP is rated AAAm by Standard & Poor's. 

Custodial credit risk: LAMP participants' investments in the pool are evidenced by shares of the 
pool. Investments in pools should be disclosed, but not categorized because they are not 
evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book-entry form. The public entity's investment 
is with the pool, not the securities that make up the pool; therefore, no disclosure is required. 

Concentration of credit risk: Pooled investments are excluded from the 5 percent disclosure 
requirement. 

Interest rate risk: LAMP is designed to be highly liquid to give its participants immediate 
access to their account balances. LAMP prepares its own interest rate disclosure using the 
weighted average maturity (W AM) method. The W AM of LAMP assets is restricted to not 
more than 90 days and consists of no securities with a maturity in excess of 397 days or 762 
days for U.S. Government floating/variable rate investments. The W AM for LAMP's total 
investments is 39 days as of June 30,2018. 

Foreign currency risk: Not applicable. 
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The investments in LAMP are stated at fair value. The fair value is determined on a weekly basis by 
LAMP and the value of the position in the external investment pool is the same as the net asset value of 
the pool shares. 

LAMP, Inc. is subject to the regulatory oversight of the state treasurer and board of directors. LAMP is 
not registered with the SEC as an investment company. 

An annual audit of LAMP is conducted by an independent certified public accountant. The Legislative 
Auditor of the State of Louisiana has full access to the records of LAMP. 

LAMP issues financial reports which can be obtained by writing: LAMP, Inc., 228 St. Charles Avenue, 
Suite 1123, New Orleans, LA 70130. 

(3) Ad Valorem Taxes 

The School Board levies ad valorem taxes on real, business, and public personal property located within 
Washington Parish's boundaries. Property taxes on real and business personal property are levied by 
the School Board based on property values assessed by the Washington Parish Tax Assessor and 
approved by the State of Louisiana Tax Commission. Public personal property tax is also levied by the 
School Board based on property value assessed and approved by the State of Louisiana Tax 
Commission. The Washington Parish Sheriff's office bills and collects property taxes for the School 
Board. Collections are remitted to the School Board monthly. 

Propertv Tax Calendar 

Assessment date 

Levy date 

Total taxes are due 

Penalties and interest are added 

Tax sale - delinquent property 

January I 

By September 15 

December 31 

After December 31 

Third Wednesday in May 

The maximum bonded indebtedness is limited to 50% of the assessed property valuation. The tax roll 
is prepared by the tax assessor in the fall of each year, with collections beginning by December of that 
year and substantially received by June 30th of the following year; therefore, no property tax receivable 
for the calendar year is included on the accompanying balance sheet. The School Board records 
property taxes when received. 
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 

(11) Defined Benefit Pension Plans 

The Washington Parish School Board (the School Board) is a participating employer in two cost­
sharing defined benefit pension plans. These plans are administered by two public employee retirement 
systems, the Teachers' Retirement System of Louisiana (TRSL) and the Louisiana School Employees' 
Retirement System (LSERS). Article X, Section 29(F) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 assigns 
the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions of these plans to the State Legislature. Each 
system is administered by a separate board of trustees and all Systems are component units of the State 
of Louisiana. 

Each of the Systems issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial 
statements and required supplementary information for the system. These reports may be obtained by 
writing, calling or downloading the reports as follows: 

TRSL: 
8401 United Plaza Blvd. 
P. 0. Box 94123 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70804-9123 
(225) 925-6446 
www.trsl.org 

Plan Descriptions: 

LSERS: 
8660 United Plaza Blvd. 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70804 
(225) 925-6484 
www.lsers.net 

Teachers' Retirement System of Louisiana (TRSL) is the administrator of a cost-sharing defined 
benefit pension plan. The plan provides retirement, disability, and survivor benefits to employees who 
meet the legal definition of a "teacher" as provided for in LRS 11:701. Eligibility for retirement 
benefits and the calculation of retirement benefits are provided for in LRS 11:761. 

Louisiana School Employees' Retirement System (LSERS) is the administrator of a cost-sharing 
defined benefit pension plan. The plan provides retirement, disability, and survivor benefits to school 
employees as defined in LRS 11:1002. Eligibility for retirement benefits and the computation of 
retirement benefits are provided for in LRS 11:1141. 

Cost of Living Adjustments 
The pension plans in which the School Board participates have the authority to grant cost-of-living 
adjustments (COLAs) on an ad hoc basis. COLAs may be granted to these systems, (TRSL and 
LSERS) if approved with a two-thirds vote of both houses of the Legislature, provided the plan meets 
certain statutory criteria related to funded status and interest earnings. 
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 

(12) Total Other Post-Employment Benefits Plan (OPEB) 

General Information about the OPEB Plan 

Plan description - The Washington Parish School Board (the School Board) provides certain 
continuing health care and life insurance benefits for its retired employees. The Washington Parish 
School Board's OPEB Plan (the OPEB Plan) is a single-employer defined benefit OPEB plan 
administered by the School Board. The authority to establish and/or amend the obligation of the 
employer, employees and retirees as provided by Louisiana Revised Statute Title 17 sections 1221 
through 1224. No assets are accumulated in a trust that need law authorizing meets the criteria in 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Codification Section P52 Postemployment 
Benefits Other Than Pensions-Reporting For Benefits Not Provided Through Trusts That Meet 
Specified Criteria-Defined Benefit. 

Benefits Provided- Medical benefits are provided through the Louisiana Office of Group Benefits 
(OGB) and involve several statewide networks and one HMO with a premium structure by region. The 
OGB plan is a fully insured, multiple-employer arrangement and has been deemed to be an agent 
multiple-employer plan (within the meaning of GASB 74/75) for financial reporting purposes and for 
this valuation. Medical benefits are provided to employees upon actual retirement from one of the 
eligible retirement plans. 

Retiree Premiums - Retiree premiums provided directly from OGB were used to determine retiree 
cost projections. The "value of benefits" has been assumed to be the portion of the premium after 
the retirement date expected to be paid by the employer for each retiree and has been used as the 
basis for calculating the actuarial present value of OPEB benefits to be paid. The active employees, 
pre-Medicare and Medicare rates are offered multiple plans and were actuarially determined. 

Life insurance coverage under the OGB program is available to retirees by election and the employer 
pays 50% of the cost of the retiree life insurance based on the blended active/retired OGB rates. 
Insurance coverage amounts are reduced at age 65 and again at age 70 according to the OGB plan 
prOVlSlOllS. 

Participation -Employees who receive active benefits are assumed to also receive retiree benefits 
at retirement. It is also assumed employees with spouse coverage would also have spouse coverage 
as a retiree. 

Contribution rates - Employees do not contribute to their post-employment benefits cost until they 
become retirees and begin receiving those benefits. Retirees contribute to the cost of the medical 
plans. The plan provisions and contribution rates are contained in the official plan documents. 

Employees covered by benefit terms- The June 30, 2018 total OPEB liability was determined using the 
July 1, 2017 actuarial valuation that included the following employees covered by the benefit terms: 
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Actuarial Assumptions and other inputs

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate – 



Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates – 
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 

(17) New Pronouncements 

GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. This Statement establishes criteria for identifYing 
fiduciary activities of all state and local govermnents. The focus of the criteria generally is on (I) 
whether a govermnent is controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity and (2) the beneficiaries with 
whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria are included to identifY fiduciary component 
units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary activities. An activity meeting the 
criteria should be reported in a fiduciary fund in the basic financial statements. Governments with 
activities meeting the criteria should present a statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of 
changes in fiduciary net position. An exception to that requirement is provided for a business-type 
activity that normally expects to hold custodial assets for three months or less. This Statement describes 
four fiduciary funds that should be reported, if applicable: (I) pension (and other employee benefit) 
trust funds, (2) investment trust funds, (3) private-purpose trust funds, and (4) custodial funds. The 
requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018. 
Therefore, if applicable, the Board will implement this guidance in 2020. 

The GASB issued Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations in November 2016. This 
Statement establishes criteria for determining the timing and pattern of recognition of a liability and a 
corresponding deferred outflow of resources for asset retirement obligations. The requirements of this 
Statement are effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2018. Therefore, if applicable, the Board 
will implement this guidance in 2019. 

GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information 
needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by 
govermnents. This Statement requires recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that 
previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of 
resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease 
accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an 
underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an 
intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred 
inflow of resources. This is a significant change in accounting principles and may impact the net 
position of the Board. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning 
after December 15, 2019. Therefore, as applicable, the Board will implement this guidance in 2021. 

GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Costs Incurred before the End of a Construction 
Period. The Statement objectives include (I) enhancing the relevance and comparability of information 
about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and (2) simplifYing accounting for 
interest costs incurred before the end of a construction period. The requirements of this Statement are 
effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. The Board will implement this 
guidance in 2021. 
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Required Supplementary Information - Other 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES 
• General Fund 

• School Lunch 
The School Lunch Special Revenue Fund, including the Breakfast program, is a program that provides 
nourishing meals to students in all grades. This program is supplemented by both federal and state funds 
that are based on reimbursement and participation. 

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF 

THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 

SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS 

Varnado High School 
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WASHINGTON PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
FRANKLINTON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Required Supplementary Information 
June 30, 2018 

BUDGET AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING 

Schedule 1-3 

The School Board follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial 
statements: 

The General Fund and the Special Revenue Funds are the only funds with legally required budgets. The 
General Fund budget and the Special Revenue Funds' budgets are adopted on an annual basis. These 
budgets include proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. 

Prior to September 15, the Superintendent submits to the Board a proposed annual appropriated budget for 
the General Fund for the fiscal year commencing the prior July 1. Public hearings are conducted to obtain 
taxpayer comments. Upon submission to the Board, the General Fund budget is legally enacted through 
adoption by the Board. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during 
the year for the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds. For the Capital Projects Fund, the level of 
budget control is at the fund, department or project level, and expenditures/encumbrances by policy 
should not exceed appropriations. The School Board approves budgets at the fund level, and the 
Superintendent is authorized to transfer amounts between line items within any fund. 

Budgets are prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Budgeted amounts are as originally 
adopted or as amended by the Board. Legally, the Board must adopt a balanced budget; that is, total 
budgeted revenues and other financing sources including fund balance must equal or exceed total 
budgeted expenditures and other financing uses. State statutes require the School Board to amend its 
budgets when revenues plus projected revenues within a fund are expected to be less than budgeted 
revenues by five percent or more and/or expenditures within a fund are expected to exceed budgeted 
expenditures by five percent or more. 

Special Revenue Funds' budgets that are not grant-oriented have annual appropriated budgets adopted 
prior to September 15 by the Board. Grant Funds are included in Special Revenue Funds, and their 
budgets are adopted at the time the grant applications are approved by the grantor. Special Revenue 
Funds' budgets were amended for insignificant amounts as necessary to comply with state law. 
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Other Supplementary Information 

Franklinton Jr. High School 
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COMBINING NONMAJOR 
GOVERNMENTALFUNDS­

BYFUNDTYPE 

I Franklinton Elementary School 
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NONMAJOR FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

EVERY STUDENT SUCCEEDS ACT 
Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) is a federally funded program (includes previous referred to Improving America's School Act Ftllld). ESSA's 
purposes are to ensme high standards for all students, provide students with an enriched and accelerated educational program, provide staff 
development, and to align the efforts of state and local educational agencies. ESSA nonmajor fund includes Title I and II. 

SSA W TITLE IV 
Title IV is a federally funded grant used to help ensure our education system prepares every child to graduate from high school ready to tln·ive in 
college and careers. The pmpose is to provide all students with access to a well-rounded education, and enhance the use of technology to improve 
academic achievement and digital literacy. 

IDEA SPECIAL EDUCATION 
Individuals witl1 Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), Public Law (PL) 101-476, is a federally financed program of free public education in the least 
restrictive envi..rollUlent for children with exceptionalities. 

LA4FEDERAL 
The LA 4 Prekindergarten Program is to provide universal, high-quality, early education and enriclmlent services to fom-year-old children, at no cost 
to children considered to be "at risk" of achieving later academic success, which is defined as children eligible for free or reduced-price meals. 

STRIVING READERS 
The Striving Readers Comprehensive Literacy Grant (SRCL) is a federally funded grant. The pwvose of tins grant is to improve literacy outcomes for 
all shrdents. Funds are used to provide classroom materials and professional development opportunities for English Language Arts teachers in efforts to 
build capacity among teacher staff by cultivating and supporting teacher leaders on each campus. 

SPECIAL FEDERAL 
During fiscal year 1995, the School Board established this fund to account for federal grants previously recorded in the General Fund. The programs 
included in this ftwd, all of which are federally financed, include Vocational Education and Adult Basic Education. 

ANGIE SCHOOL DISTRICT 
The Angie School District Ftmd accmmts for a 5.12 rnill ad valorem tax assessed on property within the Angie School District to improve, maintain, 
and operate schools within the distJ·ict. The majority of financing is provided by ad valorem tax. 

SUMMER FEEDING PROGRAM 
The Sunm1er Feeding Program is a program that provides nomishing meals to students in sulllliler school. 

SUPPER PROGRAM 
The Supper Program is a program that provides suppers to students. 

FRESH FRUITS AND VEGETABLES PROGRAM 
The Fresh Fmits and Vegetables (FFVP) program is a federal program that fosters healthy eating habits in children over the long term by providing 
fresh fruits and fresh vegetables to children attending elementary schools. 

NSLP EQUIPMENT 
The pmvose of the Equipment Assistance Grant is to distribute ftmding allocations provided by the AgricultJrre Appropriations Act. State Agencies 
competitively award equipment assistance grants to eligible school fund authmities (SF As) participating in the National School Lunch Program 
(NLSP). These ftmds will allow SF As to pmchase equipment to serve healthier meals to meet the updated meal patterns, with emphasis on more fmits 
and vegetables in school meals, improve food safety, and expand access. 

REAP FEDERAL 
The REAP Program provides funds to high-poverty, rural LEAs to supplement the LEA's activities tmder selected formula -funded Federal programs. 
LEAs have the flexibility to use their allocations for teacher recrui!Jnent and retention, teacher professional development, educational technology, 
parental involvement activities, activities authorized under Safe and Dmg-Free Schools Program under Part A of Title IV, activities authorized w1der 
Part A of Title I, and activities authorized under Title III. 

MATHEMATICS AND SCIENCE PARTNERSHIPS 
The Matl1ematics and Science Parmerships (MSP) program is a federal progi·am that provides funding to raise student achievement and interest in math 
and science by improving math and science content knowledge and the teaching skills of classroom teachers. 

SCHOOL REDESIGN 
The School Redesign Grant is a federally funded grant used to support high quality improvement plans for struggling schools. 

MCKINNEY VENTO GRANT 
The McKi1mey Vento Grant is a federally funded g1·ant used to suppm1 homeless childJ·en and youth to have equal access to the same free, appropriate 
public education as any non-homeless child or youth. 

Enon Elementary School 
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NON-MAJOR FUNDS -DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

The Varnado, Mt. Hermon, and Franklinton-Enon School District Debt Service Funds accumulate monies for 
the payment of remaining bond issues and/or improvements to those districts. The bond issues are financed 
by a special property tax levy on property within the territorial limits of the appropriate school districts. As 
debt service funds, budgets are not required. 

Mt. Hermon School 
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NON-MAJOR FUNDS -CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 

The Tax District #4 Capital Projects fund accumulates monies for construction and improvements in the 
Franklinton, Enon, Pine, and Thomas communities. The bond is fmanced by a special property tax levy on 
property within the territorial limits of the appropriate school districts. As a capital projects fund, a budget is 
not required. 

The Franklinton-Enon Capital Projects fund accounts for excess funds collected from the bond issue 
originally issued for the construction of Franklinton High School and renovations to Franklinton Junior High 
and other various projects within the district. The Franklinton-Enon bonds have been paid in full and excess 
funds collected from the taxes may be used for the same purpose as the original bond issue, purchase of land, 
and capital construction within the district. As a capital projects fund, a budget is not required. 

Pine High School 
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FIDUCIARY FUND - SCHOOL ACTIVITY 
AGENCY FUND 

The School Activity Agency Fund accounts for monies generated by the schools and organizations within the 
schools of the parish. While these accounts are under the supervision of the School Board, they belong to the 
individual school or their student bodies and are not available for use by the School Board. 
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SCHEDULES OF COMPENSATION PAID 
TO SCHOOL BOARD MEMBERS AND AGENCY HEAD 

The Schedule of Compensation Paid to School Board Members is presented in compliance with House 
Concurrent Resolution No. 54 of the 1979 Session of the Louisiana Legislature. Compensation of the School 
Board members is included in the general administrative expenditures of the General Fund. In accordance 
with Louisiana Revised Statute 17:56, the School Board members have elected the monthly payment method 
of compensation. Under this method, each member of the School Board receives $600 per month, and the 
president receives $700 per month for performing the duties of his or her office. The Schedule of 
Compensation, Benefits, and Other Payment to Agency Head is presented in accordance with Act 706 of the 
2014 Session ofthe Louisiana Legislature. 

Pine High School 
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STATISTICAL SECTION 

Franklinton 
Elementary School 
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WASHINGTON PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
FRANKLINTON, LOUISIANA 

STATISTICAL INFORMATION 
This section which is comprised of accounting and non-accounting data is presented in order to provide 
the reader with additional information as an aid to understanding the financial activities of the 
governmental unit. 

Financial Trends Information 
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the School 
Board's financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 

Net Position by Component, Last Eight Fiscal Years 
Changes in Net Position, Last Eight Fiscal Years 
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds, Last Ten Fiscal Years 
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds and 

Tax Revenues by Source, Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Revenue Capacity Information 
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the School Board's most 
significant local revenue source, the property tax. 

Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property, Last Ten Fiscal Years 
Property Tax Rates, All Direct and Overlapping Governments, Last Ten Fiscal Years 
Principal Property Taxpayers, Current Year and Nine Years Ago 
Property Tax Levies and Collections, Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Debt Capacity Information 
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the 
School Board's current levels of outstanding debt and the School Board's ability to issue 
additional debt in the future. 

Ratio of Net General Obligation Debt to Assessed Value and Net Bonded Debt per 

I 
2 
3 

4 

5 
6 
7 
8 

Capita and per Student, Last Ten Fiscal Years 9 
Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt 10 
Computation of Legal Debt Margin, Last Ten Tax Years 11 

Demographic and Economic Information 
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand 
the environment with which the School Board's financial activities take place. 

Demographic Statistics, Last Ten Fiscal Years 12 
Principal Employers, Current Year and Nine Years Ago 13 
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WASHINGTON PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
FRANKLINTON, LOUISIANA 

STATISTICAL INFORMATION 
This section which is comprised of accounting and non-accounting data is presented in order to provide 
the reader with additional information as an aid to understanding the financial activities of the 
governmental unit. 

Operating Information 
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how 
the information in the School Board's financial report relates to the services the School 
Board provides and the activities it perfonns. 

Full-time Equivalent (FTE) Employees, Last Ten Fiscal Years 
General Fund Expenditures by Function, by Percentage and by Pupil, Last Ten Fiscal 

Years 
Capital Asset Information, Last Ten Fiscal Years 
General Fund Revenues by Source, Last Ten Fiscal Years 
State Support and Local Support Per Student, Last Ten Fiscal Years 
Percentage of Annual Debt Service Expenditures For General Bonded Debt to Total 

General Fund Expenditures, Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Wesley Ray School 

14 
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16 
17 
18 

19 
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SINGLE AUDIT SECTION 

REQUIRED REPORTS- GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

The following pages contain reports on the internal control structure and compliance with laws and 
regulations required by Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States. These reports address the fmancial statements, as well as the federal fmancial assistance programs 
ofthe School Board. 

In accordance with Office of Management and Budget Uniform Guidance, a Schedule ofExpenditures of 
Federal Awards and related notes are presented. 

Thomas Elementary 
School 
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A Professional Accounting Corporation 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN 

AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

The Members of the 
Washington Parish School Board 

Franklinton, Louisiana: 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Washington Parish 
School Board (the School Board), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the School Board' s basic fmancial statements and have 
issued our report thereon dated December 18, 2018. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and perfonning our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School Board's 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to detennine the auditing procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School Board's internal 
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School Board' s internal 
control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and con-ect, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity' s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and con-ected on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School Board' s financial statements are free 
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that 
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Metairie, Louisiana 
December 18, 2018 
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A Professional Accounting Corporation 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR 
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY UNIFORM GUIDANCE 
AND THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

The Members of the 
Washington Parish School Board 

Franklinton, Louisiana: 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited the Washington Parish School Board's (the School Board) compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the Uniform Guidance Compliance Supplement that could have a 
direct and material effect on each of the School Board's major federal programs for the year ended June 
30, 2018. The School Board's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results 
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the School Board 's major federal 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted 
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance 
require that we plan and perfonn the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect 
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the 
School Board' s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal detem1ination of the School Board's 
compliance. 
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, the School Board complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the 
year ended June 30, 2018. 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

Management of the School Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and perfonning 
our audit of compliance, we considered the School Board's internal control over compliance with 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program to determine the 
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on 
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 
accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the School Board's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of perfonning their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material 
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identifie.d. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

115 



Postlethwaite & Netterville 

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Fedeul Awards Requil·ed by the Uniform Guidance 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the Washington Parish School Board (the School Board), as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the School Board's basic financial statements. We issued our report thereon dated December 
18, 2018, which contained unmodified opinions on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted 
for the purpose of fonning opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the School 
Board's basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is 
presented for the purposes of additional analysis as required by Uniform Guidance and is not a required 
part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was 
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule 
of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole. 

Metairie, Louisiana 
December 18, 2018 
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Independent Accountants' Repor·t 
On Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures 

To the Members of the 
Washington Parish School Board 
Franklinton, Louisiana: 

A Professional Accounting Corporation 

We have performed the procedures included in the Louisiana Governmental Audit Guide and enumerated 
below, which were agreed to by the management of the Washington Parish School Board (the School 
Board) and the Legislative Auditor, State of Louisiana, solely to assist users in evaluating management's 
assertions about the performance and statistical data accompanying the annual financial statements of the 
School Board and to determine whether the specified schedules are free of obvious enors and omissions as 
provided by the Board of Elementary and Secondary Education (BESE) Bulletin in compliance with 
Louisiana Revised Statute 24:514 L Management of the School Board is responsible for its performance 
and statistical data. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of the specified parties. 
Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures enumerated below 
either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for any other purpose .. 

Our procedures and findings relate to the accompanying schedules of supplemental information and are as 
follows: 

General Fund Ins tructional and Support Expenditures and Certain Local Revenue Sources (Schedule 1) 

1. We selected a random sample of 25 transactions and reviewed supporting documentation to 
determine if the sampled expenditures/revenues are classified conectly and are reported in the 
proper amounts for each of the following amounts reported on the schedule: 

• Total General Fund Instructional Expenditures 
• Total General Fund Equipment Expenditures 
• Total Local Taxation Revenue 
• Total Local Earnings on Investment in Real Property 
• Total State Revenue in Lieu of Taxes 
• Nonpublic Textbook Revenue 
• Nonpublic Transportation Revenue 

No differences noted. 

Class Size Characteristics (Schedule 2) 

2. We obtained a list of classes by school, school type, and class size as reported on the schedule. 
We then traced a sample of 10 classes to the October 1 roll books for those classes and observed 
that the class was properly classified on the schedule. 

No differences noted. 
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Experience of Public School Staff (NO SCHEDULE) 

3. We obtained October 1 st PEP data submitted to the Department of Education (or equivalent listing 
prepared by management), including full-time teachers, principals, and assistant principals by 
classification, as well as their level of education and obtained management' s representation that the 
data/listing was complete. We then selected a sample of25 individuals, traced to each individual's 
personnel file and observed that each individual's education level was properly classified on the 
PEP data (or equivalent listing prepared by management). 

No differences noted. 

Experience ofPublic Principals, Assistant Principals, and Ful-time Classroom Teachers (NO 
SCHEDULE) 

4. We obtained October 1 st PEP data submitted to the Department of Education (or equivalent listing 
prepared by management), of full-time teachers, principals, and assistant principals by 
classification and obtained management's representation that the data/listing was complete. We 
traced the same sample used in procedure 3 to the individual's personnel file and observed that 
each individual's experience was properly classified on the PEP data (or equivalent listing prepared 
by management). 

No differences noted. 

Public School Staff Data: Average Salaries (NO SCHEDULE) 

5. We obtained June 30th PEP data submitted to the Department of Education (or equivalent listing 
provided by management) of all classroom teachers, including base salaty, extra compensation, and 
ROTC or rehired retiree status, as well as full-time equivalents, and obtained management's 
representation that the data/listing was complete. We then selected a sample of 25 individuals, 
traced to each individual 's personnel file, and observed that each individual' s salary, extra 
compensation, and full-time equivalents were properly included on the PEP data (or equivalent 
listing prepared by management). 

No differences noted. 
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This agreed-upon procedures engagement was performed in accordance with attestation standards 
established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the standards applicable to 
attestation engagements contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the United States 
Comptroller General. We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review, the objective 
of which would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on the performance and 
statistical data. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed 
additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to 
you. 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of testing performed on the performance and 
statistical data accompanying the annual financial statements of the School Board as required by Louisiana 
Revised Statue 24:514.1 , and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or 
compliance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 
24:513, this report is distributed by the Louisiana Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

Metairie, Louisiana 
December 18, 2018 
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Independent Accountant's Report 
On Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures 

For the Year Ended 2018 

A Professional Accounting Corporation 

To Members of Washington Parish School Board and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by Washington Parish School 
Board (the School Board) and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor (LLA) on the control and compliance 
(C/C) areas identified in the LLA's Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures (SAUPs) for the fiscal period July 
1, 2017 through June 30, 2018. The School Board's management is responsible for those C/C areas 
identified in the SAUPs. 

This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards 
established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and applicable standards of 
Government Auditing Standards. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of the 
specified users of this report Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the 
procedures described below either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for any other 
purpose. 

The procedures performed and the results thereof are set forth below. The procedure is stated first, followed 
by the results of the procedure presented in italics. If the item being subjected to the procedures is positively 
identified or present, then the results will read "no exception noted". If not, then a description of the 
exception ensues. Additionally, certain procedures listed below may not have been performed in accordance 
with guidance provided by the Louisiana Legislative Auditor, the specified user of the report. For those 
procedures, "procedure was not perfonned due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior 
year or the existence of mitigating intemal controls as asserted by the School Board" is indicated. 

Written Policies and Procedures 

1. Obtain and inspect the entity's written policies and procedures and observe that they address each of 
the following categories and subcategories (if applicable to public funds and the entity's operations): 

a) Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget 

We performed the procedures above and noted no exceptions. 

b) Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated; (2) how vendors are added to the vendor 
list; (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and purchase orders; (4) 
controls to ensure compliance with the public bid law; and (5) documentation required to be 
maintained for all bids and price quotes. 

We performed the procedures above noting the following exception: 
• No written policies regarding (2) how vendors are added to the vendor list. 
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c) Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving 

We performed the procedures above noting the following exception: 
• No written policies regarding who is authorized to initiate disbursements. 

d) Receipts, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits. Also, policies and procedures 
should include management's actions to detennine the completeness of all collections for each type 
of revenue or agency fund additions (e.g. periodic confirmation with outside parties, reconciliation 
to utility billing after cutoff procedures, reconciliation of traffic ticket number sequences, agency 
fund forfeiture monies confirmation). 

We pe1formed the procedures above noting the following exception: 

• No written policies regarding receiving, recording, or preparing deposit or any 
reconciling processes to identify the completeness of collections/deposits. 

e) Payroll/Personnel, including (1) payroll processing, and (2) reviewing and approving time and 
attendance records, including leave and overtime worked. 

We performed the procedures above noting the following exceptions: 

• No written policies regarding (1) payroll processing. 

• No written policies regarding (2) reviewing and approving time and attendance records, 
including leave and overtime worked. 

f) Contracting, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard terms and 
conditions, (3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process. 

We performed the procedures above noting the following exception: 

• No written policies regarding (3) legal review. 

g) Credit Cards (and debit cards, fuel cards, P-Cards, if applicable) , including ( 1) how cards are to 
be controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation requirements, ( 4) required approvers 
of statements, and (5) monitoring card usage (e.g. , determining the reasonableness of fuel card 
purchases) 

We performed the procedures above noting the following exception: 

• No written policies regarding to (1) how cards are to be controlled, (2) allowable business 
uses, (3) documentation requirements, (4) required approvers of statements, and (5) 
monitoring card usage. 

h) Travel and expense reimbursement, including (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar thresholds by 
categoty of expense, (3) documentation requirements, and ( 4) required approvers 

We performed the procedures above and noted no exceptions. 
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i) Ethics, including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute 42:1111-1121, (2) 
actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3) system to monitor possible ethics violations, 
and ( 4) requirement that all employees, including elected officials, annually attest through signature 
verification that they have read the entity's ethics policy. 

We performed the procedures above noting the following exceptions: 

• No written policies regarding (2) actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place. 

• No written policies regarding (3) system to monitor possible ethics violations. 

• No written policies regarding (4) requirement that all employees, including elected 
officials, annually attest through signature verification that they have read the entity's 
ethics policy. 

j) Debt Service, including (1) debt issuance approval, (2) continuing disclosure/EMMA reporting 
requirements, (3) debt reserve requirements, and ( 4) debt service requirements. 

We performed the procedures above noting the following exceptions: 

• No written policies regarding (3) debt reserve requirements. 

• No written policies regarding (4) debt service requirements. 

Management response: 

lb) Purchasing: We will update our policy to address these two purchasingfindings. 

lc) Disbursements: We are currently working on a procedure manual. We hope to have it completed by 
the beginning of the next fiscal year. It will address this exception. 

ld) Receipts: We are currently working on a procedure manual. We hope to have it completed by the 
beginning of the next fiscal year. It will address this exception. 

le) Payroll/Personnel: We are currently working on a procedure manual. We hope to have it completed 
by the beginning of the next fiscal year. It will address this exception. 

lf) Contracting: We are currently working on a procedure manual. We hope to have it completed by the 
beginning of the next fiscal year. It will address this exception. 

lg) Credit Cards: We are currently working on a procedure manual. We hope to have it completed by the 
beginning of the next fiscal year. It will address this exception. 

li) Ethics: We are currently working on a procedure manual. We hope to have it completed by the 
beginning of the next fiscal year. It will address this exception. 

lj) Debt Service: We are currently working on a procedure manual. We hope to have it completed by the 
beginning of the next fiscal year. It will address this exception. 
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Board or Finance Committee 

2. Obtain and inspect the board/finance committee minutes for the fiscal period, as well as the board's 
enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or equivalent document in effect during the fiscal period, and: 

a) Observe that the board/finance committee met with a quorum at least monthly, or on a frequency 
in accordance with the board's enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or other equivalent document. 

We performed the procedures above and noted no exceptions. 

b) For those entities reporting on the governmental accounting model, observe that the minutes 
refe.renced or included monthly budget-to-actual comparisons on the general fund and major special 
revenue funds, as well as monthly financial statements (or budget-to-actual comparisons, if 
budgeted) for major proprietary funds. 

We performed the procedures above noting the following exception: 
• Monthly meetings do not contain budget-to-actual comparisons on the General fund and 

any additional funds identified as major funds. 

c) For governmental entities, obtain the prior year audit report and observe the umestricted fund 
balance in the general fund. If the general fund had a negative ending umestricted fund balance in 
the prior year audit report, observe that the minutes for at least one meeting during the fiscal period 
referenced or included a formal plan to eliminate the negative unrestricted fund balance in the 
general fund. 

We pe1jormed the procedures above and noted no exceptions. 

Management response: 

2h) Review of budget-to-actual comparisons: We began including budget-to-actual comparisons for the 

3 major funds as part of the monthly school board meetings in July 2018. 

Bank Reconciliations 

3. Obtain a listing of client bank accounts for the fiscal period from management and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Ask management to identify the entity's main operating 
account. Select the entity's main operating account and randomly select 4 additional accounts (or all 
accounts if less than 5). Randomly select one month from the fiscal period, obtain and inspect the 
corresponding bank statement and reconciliation for selected each account, and observe that: 

We performed the procedures above and noted no exceptions. 

a) Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of the related 
statement closing date (e.g., initialed and dated, electronically logged); 

Of the 5 bank reconciliations obtained, 1 did not have evidence that it was prepared within 2 months 
of the related statement closing date. 
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b) Bank reconciliations include evidence that a member of management/board member who does not 
handle cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each bank reconciliation (e.g., initialed and 
dated, electronically logged); and 

Of the 5 bank reconciliations obtained, 1 did not have a reviewers' initials or any other 
documentation evidencing the review. 

c) Management has documentation reflecting that it has researched reconciling items that have been 
outstanding for more than 12 months from the statement closing date, if applicable. 

We performed the procedures above and noted no exceptions. 

Management response: 

3a) Preparation of bank reconciliation : We have reviewed the importance of timely preparation of bank 
reconciliations with our staff and they are now being prepared in a timely manner. 

3b) Review of bank reconciliation: Management will make sure that bank reconciliations are reviewed in 
a timely manner. 

Collections 

4. Obtain a listing of deposit sites for the fiscal period where deposits for cash/checks/money orders (cash) 
are prepared and management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 deposit 
sites (or all deposit sites if less than 5). 

A listing of deposit sites was provided and included a total of 12 deposit sites. No exceptions were noted 
as a result of performing this procedure. 

From the listing provided, we randomly selected 5 deposit sites and performed the procedures below. 

5. For each deposit site selected, obtain a listing of collection locations and management's representation 
that the listing is complete. Randomly select one collection location for each deposit site (i.e. 5 
collection locations for 5 deposit sites), obtain and inspect written policies and procedures relating to 
employee job duties (if no written policies or procedures, inquire of employees about their job duties) 
at each collection location, and observe that job duties are properly segregated at each collection 
location such that: 

A listing of collection locations for each deposit site selected in procedure #4 was provided and 
included a total of 12 collection locations. No exceptions were noted as a result of performing this 
procedure. 

From each of the listings provided, we randomly selected one collection location for each deposit site. 
Review of the Entity's written policies and procedures or inquiry with employee(s) regarding job duties 
was performed in order to perform the procedures below. 
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a) Employees that are responsible for cash collections do not share cash drawers/registers. 

For 5 of the 5 locations selected for our procedures, the employees responsible for cash collections 
share cash drawers/registers. 

b) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for preparing/making bank 
deposits, unless another employee/official is responsible for reconciling collection documentation 
(e.g. pre-numbered receipts) to the deposit. 

For 5 of the 5 locations selected for our procedures, the employee responsible for collecting cash 
prepares/makes the bank deposit and reconciles collection documentation to the deposit. 

c) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for posting collection entries to 
the general ledger or subsidiary ledgers, unless another employee/official is responsible for 
reconciling ledger postings to each other and to the deposit. 

For 5 of the 5 locations selected for ow· procedures, the employee responsible for collecting cash 
posts collection entries to the general/edger and reconciles ledger postings to each other and the 
deposit. 

d) The employee(s) responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger and/or subsidiary 
ledgers, by revenue source and/or agency fund additions are not responsible for collecting cash, 
unless another employee verifies the reconciliation. 

There is no formal process to reconcile cash collections to the general ledger and/or subsidimy 
ledgers, by revenue source and/or agency fund additions, by a person who is not responsible for 
cash collections in the collection locations selected. 

6. Inquire of management that all employees who have access to cash are covered by a bond or insurance 
policy for theft. 

The Entity stated that all employees who have access to cash are bonded and/or covered under the 
Entity's insurance policy. 

7. Randomly select two deposit dates for each of the 5 bank accounts selected for procedure #3 under 
"Bank Reconciliations" above (select the next deposit date chronologically if no deposits were made 
on the dates randomly selected and randomly select a deposit if multiple deposits are made on the same 
day). A lternately, the practitioner may use a source document other than bank statements when 
selecting the deposit dates for testing, such as a cash collection log, daily revenue report, receipt book, 
etc. Obtain supporting documentation for each of the 10 deposits and: 

We randomly selected two deposit dates for each of the 5 bank accounts selected in procedure #3. We 
obtained supporting documentation for each of the 10 deposits and performed the procedures below. 

a) Observe that receipts are sequentially pre-numbered. 

The Entity does not maintain sequentially pre-numbered receipts. 
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b) Trace sequentially pre-numbered receipts, system reports, and other related collection 
documentation to the deposit slip. 

The Entity does not maintain sequentially pre-numbered receipts, system reports, or other related 
collection documentation. As such, we were unable to perform the procedure. 

c) Trace the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement. 

We performed the procedures above and noted no exceptions. 

d) Observe that the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the collection location 
(within one week if the depository is more than 10 miles from the collection location or the deposit 
is less than $1 00). 

We performed the procedures above and noted no exceptions. 

e) Trace the actual deposit per the bank statement to the general ledger. 

We performed the procedures above and noted no exceptions. 

Management Response: 

Sa) Sharing cash register: We are currently working on a procedure manual. We hope to have it completed 
by the beginning of the next fiscal year. It will address this exception. 

Sb) Bank deposits: Most of our schools do not have enough office personnel to segregate these duties. We 
are exploring other controls to compensate for this exposure. 

Sc) Posting entries: Most of our schools do not have enough office personnel to segregate these duties. We 
are exploring other controls to compensate for this exposure. 

Sd) Cash reconciliation: Most of our schools do not have enough office personnel to segregate these duties. 
We are exploring other controls to compensate for this exposure. 

Non-payroll Disbursements (excluding card purchases/payments, travel reimbursements, and petty cash 
purchases) 

8. Obtain a listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period and management' s 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 locations (or all locations ifless than 5). 

The listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period was provided. No exceptions were 
noted as a result of performing this procedure. 

From the listing provided, we randomly selected 5 locations and performed the procedures below. 
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9. For each location selected under #8 above, obtain a listing of those employees involved with non­
payroll purchasing and payment functions . Obtain written policies and procedures relating to employee 
job duties (if the agency has no written policies and procedures, inquire of employees about their job 
duties), and observe that job duties are properly segregated such that: 

The listing of employees involved with non-payroll purchasing and payment functions for each payment 
processing location selected in procedure #8 was provided. No exceptions were noted as a result of 
peiforming this procedure. 

Review of the Entity's written policies and procedures or inquiry with employee(s) regarding job duties 
was performed in order to perform the procedures below. 

a) At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approving a purchase, and 
placing an order/making the purchase. 

We performed the procedures above and noted no exceptions. 

b) At least two employees are involved in processing and approving payments to vendors. 

We performed the procedures above and noted no exceptions. 

c) The employee responsible for processing payments is prohibited from adding/modifying vendor 
files, unless another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes to vendor files. 

We performed the procedures above and noted no exceptions. 

d) Either the employee/official responsible for signing checks mails the payment or gives the signed 
checks to an employee to mail who is not responsible for processing payments. 

For 5 of the 5 locations selected for our procedures, the person responsible for processing 
payments are also responsible for mailing payments. 

10. For each location selected under #8 above, obtain the entity' s non-payroll disbursement transaction 
population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and obtain management's representation that 
the population is complete. Randomly select 5 disbursements for each location, obtain supporting 
documentation for each transaction and: 

A listing of non-payroll disbursements for each payment processing location selected in procedures #8 
was provided related to the reporting period. No exceptions were noted as a result of performing this 
procedure. 

From each of the listings provided, we randomly selected 5 disbursements and performed the 
procedures below. 

a) Observe that the disbursement matched the related original invoice/billing statement. 

We peiformed the procedures above and noted no exceptions. 
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b) Observe that the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g., initial/date, electronic 
logging) of segregation of duties tested under #9, as applicable. 

We performed the procedures above and noted that the person responsible for processing payments 
are also responsible for mailing payments, as noted in #9. 

Management response: 

9d) Processing payments: Most of our schools do not have enough office personnel to segregate these 
duties. We are exploring other controls to compensate for this exposure. 

JOb) Processing payments: Most of our schools do not have enough office personnel to segregate these 
duties. We are exploring other controls to compensate for this exposure. 

Credit Cards/Debit Cards/Fuel Cards/P-Cards 

11. Obtain from management a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, and P-cards 
(cards) for the fiscal period, including the card numbers and the names of the persons who maintained 
possession of the cards. Obtain management' s representation that the listing is complete. 

A listing of cards was provided. No exceptions were noted as a result of performing this procedure. 

12. Using the listing prepared by management, randomly select 5 cards (or all cards ifless than 5) that were 
used during the fiscal period. Randomly select one monthly statement or combined statement for each 
card (for a debit card, randomly select one monthly bank statement), obtain supporting documentation, 
and: 
From the listing provided, we randomly selected 5 cards used in the fiscal period. We randomly selected 
one monthly statement for each of the 5 cards selected and performed the procedures noted below. 

a) Observe that there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined statement and supporting 
documentation (e.g., original receipts for credit/debit card purchases, exception reports for 
excessive fuel card usage) was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other than the 
authorized card holder. [Note: Requiring such approval may constrain the legal authority of certain 
public officials (e.g., mayor of a Lawrason Act municipality); these instances should not be 
reported.)] 

We pe1jormed the procedures above and noted no exceptions. 

b) Observe that finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected statements. 

For 1 of the 5 credit cards selected for our procedures, we observed thatfinance charges and/or 
late fees were assessed on the selected statement. 



Postlethwaite & Netterville 

13. Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under #12 above, excluding fuel cards, 
randomly select 10 transactions (or all transactions if less than 1 0) from each statement, and obtain 
supporting documentation for the transactions (i.e. each card should have 10 transactions subject to 
testing). For each transaction, observe that it is supported by (1) an original itemized receipt that 
identifies precisely what was purchased, (2) written documentation ofthe business/public purpose, and 
(3) documentation of the individuals participating in meals (for meal charges only). 

We performed the procedures above and noted no exceptions. 

Management responses: 

12b) Finance charges: Every effort will be made to pay credit card statements in a timely manner. 

Travel ami Travel-Related Expense Reimbursements (excluding card transactions) 

14. Obtain from management a listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements during the 
fiscal period and management' s representation that the listing or general ledger is complete. Randomly 
select 5 reimbursements, obtain the related expense reimbursement forms/prepaid expense 
documentation of each selected reimbursement, as well as the supporting documentation. For each of 
the 5 reimbursements selected: 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year or 
the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the School Board. 

a) If reimbursed using a per diem, agree the reimbursement rate to those rates established either by 
the State of Louisiana or the U.S. General Services Administration (www.gsa.gov). 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year 
or the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the School Board. 

b) If reimbursed using actual costs, observe that the reimbursement is supported by an original 
itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased. 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year 
or the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the School Board. 

c) Observe that each reimbursement is supported by documentation of the business/public purpose 
(for meal charges, observe that the documentation includes the names of those individuals 
participating) and other documentation required by written policy (procedure # lh). 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year 
or the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the School Board. 

http://www.gsa.govl
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d) Observe that each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other than 
the person receiving reimbursement. 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year 
or the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the School Board. 

Contracts 

15. Obtain from management a listing of all agreements/contracts for professional services, materials and 
supplies, leases, and construction activities that were initiated or renewed during the fiscal period. 
Alternately, the practitioner may use an equivalent selection source, such as an active vendor list. 
Obtain management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 contracts (or all 
contracts if less than 5) from the listing, excluding the practitioner's contract, and: 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year or 

the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the School Board. 

a) Observe that the contract was bid in accordance with the Louisiana Public Bid Law (e.g., solicited 
quotes or bids, advertised), if required by law. 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year 
or the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the School Board. 

b) Observe that the contract was approved by the governing body/board, if required by policy or law 
(e.g. Lawrason Act, Home Rule Charter). 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year 
or the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the School Board. 

c) If the contract was amended (e.g. change order), observe that the original contract terms provided 
for such an amendment. 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year 
or the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the School Board. 

d) Randomly select one payment from the fiscal period for each of the 5 contracts, obtain the 
supporting invoice, agree the invoice to the contract terms, and observe that the invoice and related 
payment agreed to the terms and conditions of the contract. 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year 
or the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the School Board. 
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Payroll and Personnel 

16. Obtain a listing of employees/elected officials employed during the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 employees/officials, obtain related paid 
salaries and personnel files, and agree paid salaries to authorized salaries/pay rates in the personnel 
files. 

A listing of employees/elected officials employed during the fiscal year was provided. No exceptions 
were noted as a result of performing this procedure. 

From the listing provided, we randomly selected 5 employees/officials and performed the specified 
procedures. No exceptions noted. 

17. Randomly select one pay period during the fiscal period. For the 5 employees/officials selected under 
# 16 above, obtain attendance records and leave documentation for the pay period, and: 

We randomly selected 1 pay period during the fiscal period and performed the procedures below for 
the 5 employees/officials selected in procedure #16. 

a) Observe that all selected employees/officials documented their daily attendance and leave (e.g., 
vacation, sick, compensatory). (Note: Generally, an elected official is not eligible to earn leave and 
does not document his/her attendance and leave. However, if the elected official is earning leave 
according to policy and/or contract, the official should document his/her daily attendance and 
leave.). 

For 2 of the 5 employees selected for our procedures, we noted that no daily attendance and leave 
records were kept for these employees. 

b) Observe that supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected employees/officials. 

For 2 of the 5 employees selected for our· procedures, we noted that no daily attendance and leave 
records were kept for these employees, therefore, we were unable to observe supervisor approval. 

c) Observe that any leave accrued or taken during the pay period is reflected in the entity' s cumulative 
leave records. 

We pe1jormed the procedures above and noted no exceptions. 

18. Obtain a listing of those employees/officials that received termination payments during the fiscal period 
and management's representation that the list is complete. Randomly select two employees/officials, 
obtain related documentation of the hours and pay rates used in management' s termination payment 
calculations, agree the hours to the employee/officials' cumulate leave records, and agree the pay rates 
to the employee/officials' authorized pay rates in the employee/officials' personnel files. : 

A listing of employees/officials receiving termination payments during the fiscal period was provided. 
No exceptions were noted as a result of performing this procedure. 
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From the listing provided, we randomly selected 2 employees/officials and performed the specified 
procedures. No exceptions were noted as a result of performing this procedure. 

19. Obtain management's representation that employer and employee portions of payroll taxes, retirement 
contributions, health insurance premiums, and workers ' compensation premiums have been paid, and 
associated forms have been filed, by required deadlines. 

We performed the procedures above and noted no exceptions. 

Management responses: 

17a) Employee attendance and leave: We are looking into a way to consistently track time and attendance 
for district employees. 

17b) Daily attendance approval: We are looking into a way to consistently track time and attendance for 
district employees. 

Ethics 

20. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from procedure #16 under "Payroll and Personnel" 
above obtain ethics documentation from management, and: 

a) Observe that the documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed one hour of ethics 
training during the fiscal period. 

We performed the procedures above and noted no exceptions. 

b) Observe that the documentation demonstrates each employee/official attested through signature 
verification that he or she has read the entity's ethics policy during the fiscal period. 

We performed the procedures above and noted no exceptions. 

Debt Service 

21. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes issued during the fiscal period and management's representation that 
the listing is complete. Select all bonds/notes on the listing, obtain supporting documentation, and 
observe that State Bond Commission approval was obtained for each bond/note issued. 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year or 
the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the School Board. 
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22. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes outstanding at the end of the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one bond/note, inspect debt covenants, 
obtain supporting documentation for the reserve balance and payments, and agree actual reserve 
balances and payments to those required by debt covenants. 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year or 
the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the School Board. 

Other 

23. Obtain a listing of misappropnatwns of public funds and assets during the fiscal period and 
management' s representation that the listing is complete. Select all misappropriations on the listing, 
obtain supporting documentation, and observe that the entity reported the misappropriation(s) to the 
legislative auditor and the district attorney of the parish in which the entity is domiciled. 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year or 
the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the School Board. 

24. Observe that the entity has posted on its premises and website, the notice required by R.S. 24:523.1 
concerning the reporting of misappropriation, fraud, waste, or abuse of public funds. 

Procedure was not performed due to no exceptions occurring for this procedure in the prior year or 
the existence of mitigating internal controls as asserted by the School Board. 

We were not engaged to perform, and did not perform, an audit, the objective of which would be the 
expression of an opinion on management's assertions. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have 
been reported to you. 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those C/C areas identified 
in the SAUPs, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or compliance. 
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this 
report is distributed by the LLA as a public document. 

Metairie, Louisiana 
December 18, 2018 




